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KPI Title Standard 
HSH FY 

2021 
TV FY 
2021 

1 Proportion of calls abandoned <3% 19.4% 20.8% 

2 Average speed to answer calls <20 Secs 544 611 

4 Proportion of calls assessed by a clinician or Clinical Advisor >50% 52.4% 31.8% 

5a 
Number of callers offered a call back within 20 minutes 
(immediately), who received a call back within 20 minutes 

>90% 39.4% 25.8% 

5b 
Number of callers offered a call back within a timeframe over 
20 minutes and up to 1 hour inclusive, who received a call 
back within 1 hour 

>90% 55.5% 5.3% 

5c 
Number of callers offered a call back within a timeframe over 
1 hour, who received a call back within the specified 
timeframe 

>90% 63.0% 57.5% 

          

6 
Proportion of callers recommended self-care at the end of 
clinical input 

>15% 25.8% 13.1% 

7 
Proportion of calls initially given a category 3 or 4 ambulance 
disposition that are validated within 30 minutes 

>50% 46.1% 34.3% 

8 
Proportion of calls initially given an ED disposition that are 
validated 

>50% 68.8% 66.1% 

          

11 
Proportion of calls where the caller was booked into a GP 
practice or GP access hub 

>75% 20.5% 29.6% 

12 
Proportion of calls where the caller was booked into an IUC 
Treatment Centre or home residence 

>70% 13.4% 39.4% 
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13 Proportion of calls where the caller was booked into a UTC >70% 60.6% 81.7% 

14 
Proportion of calls where caller given a booked time slot with 
an Emergency Department 

>75% 61.4% 65.2% 

15 
Proportion of calls where the caller was booked into a Same 
Day Emergency Care (SDEC) service 

N/A 0.0% 2.0% 
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Month & Year Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21

Calls Answered in 60 Secs 29,921 31,435 37,654 41,375 37,944 40,045 44,598 41,775 41,317 41,431 39,178 46,244

% Answered in 60 Secs 89.56% 90.89% 87.24% 81.29% 72.77% 70.62% 76.69% 72.84% 73.94% 82.97% 81.41% 81.56%

Calls Answered in 5 mins 32,513 33,876 41,937 48,766 48,023 51,590 54,508 53,195 51,792 48,017 45,591 54,395

% Answered in 5 mins 97.32% 97.95% 97.16% 95.81% 92.10% 90.99% 93.73% 92.75% 92.68% 96.16% 94.74% 95.93%

Calls Answered in 90 Secs 30,575 32,078 38,671 43,118 40,026 42,252 46,848 44,351 43,654 43,055 40,687 48,229

% Answered in 90 Secs 91.52% 92.75% 89.59% 84.72% 76.76% 74.52% 80.55% 77.33% 78.12% 86.22% 84.55% 85.06%
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A White - British J Asian or Asian British - Pakistani

B White - Irish L Asian or Asian British - Any other Asian background

C White - Any other White background M Black or Black British - Caribbean

D Mixed - White & Black Caribbean N Black or Black British - African

E Mixed - White & Black African P Black Nigerian / Black British

F Mixed - White & Asian R Chinese

G Mixed - Any other Mixed background S Other Specified

H Asian or Asian British - Indian Z Not Stated

Ethnicity Codes
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Permanent Other Permanent Other

Number Number Number Number

Medical and dental -                -               

Ambulance staff 2,805            2,334          

Administration and estates 1,357            29 1,380          29

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 155                4 607              4

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 116                5 117              9

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners -               

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 15                  -               

Healthcare science staff -                -               

Social care staff -                -               

Other -                -               

Total average numbers 4,448            38                  4,438          42                  

2021/22 2020/21
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1 2020/21:  66% response rate. 2021/22 had the greater number of responses due to workforce expansion  
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https://www.scas.nhs.uk/policy-for-determining-the-remuneration-of-senior-trust-staff/
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Lena Samuels (Chairman) 75-80 50-55

Les Broude (Non - Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

Mike Hawker (Non - Executive Director) 15-20 15-20

Nigel Chapman (Non - Executive Director) 15-20 15-20

Sumit Biswas (Non - Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

Priya Singh (Non - Executive Director) 5-10 10-15 Note 4

Dr Anne Stebbing (Non - Executive Director) 15-20 15-20

Ian Green (Non - Executive Director) 10-15

Dr Henrietta Hughes OBE (Non - Executive Director) 0-5 Note 4

William Hancock (Chief Executive) 185-190 5600 10-15 52.5-55 255-260 185-190 6800 5-10 42.5-45 235-240 Note 1

Charles Porter (Director of Finance) 130-135 5-10 32.5-35 170-175 130-135 5-10 22.5-25 160-165 Note 1

Michael Murphy (Director of Strategy and Business Development) 120-125 5-10 30-32.5 160-165 120-125 52.5-55 175-180 Note 1

Melanie Saunders (Director of Human Resources and 

Organisational Development 115-120 5-10 25-27.5 150-155 115-120 1100 0 -5 12.5-15 130-135 Note 1

John Black (Medical Director) 135-140 135-140 Note 2

Professor Helen Young (Director of Patient Care) 165-170 5500 5-10 22.5-25 195-200 125-130 0-5 10-12.5 135-140 Note 1

Paul Kempster (Chief Operating Officer) 125-130 5-10 62.5-65 195-200 70-75 27.5-30 100-105 Note 1

Jane Campbell ( Acting Director of Patient Care) 95-100 5-10 105-110 Note 3

2021/22 2020/21
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2021/2022 25th 

percentile

Median 75th 

percentile

2020/2021 25th 

percentile

Median 75th 

percentile

Salary 

component of pay
£24,354 £29,934 £42,735

Salary 

component of pay
£24,736 £31,013 £45,753

Total pay and 

benefits 

excluding 

pension benefits

£24,354 £29,934 £42,735

Total pay and 

benefits 

excluding 

pension benefits

£24,736 £31,013 £45,753

Pay and benefits 

excluding 

pension: pay ratio 

for highest paid 

director

8:1 7:1 5:1

Pay and benefits 

excluding 

pension: pay ratio 

for highest paid 

director

8:1 7:1 4:1
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£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

William Hancock (Chief Executive) 2.5-5 0-2.5 75-80 160-165 1452 58 1361 0

Charles Porter (Director of Finance) 2.5-5 0 30-35 40-45 548 27 498 0

Michael Murphy (Director of Strategy and Business 

Development)
0-2.5 0 20-25 0 347 22 305 0

Melanie Saunders (Director of Human Resources and 

Organisational Development
0-2.5 0 40-45 80-85 727 25 682 0

Professor Helen Young (Director of Patient Care) 0-2.5 0 55-60 130-135 1072 31 1017 0

Mr Paul Kempster (Chief Operating Officer) 2.5-5 0 10-15 0 144 28 86 0

Jane Campbell ( Acting Director of Patient Care) 0-2.5 0 35-40 75-80 649 22 610 0
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Total 

Number in 

Office

Total Number 

Receiving 

Expenses

Aggregate Sum 

of Expenses 

paid (£00)

Total 

Number in 

Office

Total Number 

Receiving 

Expenses

Aggregate Sum 

of Expenses 

paid (£00)

Governors 26 1 1 26 1 0

Directors 17 12 44 16 0 40

2021/22 2020/21
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South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Annual Accounts 2021/22

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Operating income from patient care activities 3 322,204 309,986 322,204 309,986 

Other operating income 4 9,303 29,734 9,030 29,622 

Operating expenses 5 (330,561) (336,687) (330,056) (335,290)

Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations 946 3,033 1,178 4,318 

Finance income 49 5 49 5 

Finance expenses (11) 56 (11) 56 

PDC dividends payable (960) (1,011) (960) (1,011)

Net finance costs (922) (950) (922) (950)

Other gains / (losses) 10 272 154 66 148 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year from continuing operations 296 2,237 322 3,516 

Other comprehensive income

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

Impairments (76) (250) (76) (250)

Revaluations 1,610 3,734 1,737 3,711 

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period 1,830 5,721 1,983 6,977 

Surplus/ (deficit) for the period attributable to:

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 296 2,237 322 3,516 

TOTAL 296 2,237 322 3,516 

Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period attributable to:

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 1,830 5,721 1,983 6,977 

TOTAL 1,830 5,721 1,983 6,977 

The notes on pages 6 to 40 form part of these accounts

All income and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.

Group Trust
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South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Annual Accounts 2021/22

Statements of Financial Position
31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 12 2,110 3,029 2,110 3,029 

Property, plant and equipment 13 68,092 71,408 60,515 60,869 

Other investments / financial assets 17 - - 7,254 10,669 

Receivables 16 20 - 20 - 

Total non-current assets 70,222 74,437 69,899 74,567 

Current assets

Inventories 15 1,220 1,142 828 752 

Receivables 16 16,306 20,123 16,854 20,678 

Other investments / financial assets 17 - - 2,432 2,748 

Cash and cash equivalents 19 60,910 50,714 60,107 49,051 

Total current assets 78,436 71,979 80,221 73,229 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 20 (43,513) (41,870) (42,749) (41,204)

Provisions 21 (9,414) (9,388) (9,372) (9,319)

Total current liabilities (52,927) (51,258) (52,121) (50,523)

Total assets less current liabilities 95,731 95,158 97,999 97,273 

Non-current liabilities

Provisions 21 (4,603) (6,401) (4,603) (6,401)

Total non-current liabilities (4,603) (6,401) (4,603) (6,401)

Total assets employed 91,128 88,757 93,396 90,872 

Financed by 

Public dividend capital 64,758 64,217 64,758 64,217 

Revaluation reserve 18,448 16,830 18,448 16,807 

Other reserves (350) (350) (350) (350)

Income and expenditure reserve 8,272 8,060 10,540 10,198 

Total taxpayers' equity 91,128 88,757 93,396 90,872 

The notes on pages 6 to 40 form part of these accounts.

Name Will Hancock

Position Chief Executive
Date 21 June 2022

Group Trust

The primary financial statements on pages 1 to 5 and the notes on pages 6 to 40 were approved by the Trust's Board of 

Directors on 21 June 2022 and signed on its behalf by Will Hancock, Chief Executive Officer.
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South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Annual Accounts 2021/22

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

Group

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward 64,217 16,830 (350) 8,060 88,757 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - - 296 296 

Other transfers between reserves - 104 - (104) - 

Impairments - (76) - - (76)

Revaluations - 1,610 - - 1,610 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (20) - 20 - 

Public dividend capital received 541 - - - 541 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2022 64,758 18,448 (350) 8,272 91,128 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Group

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2020 - brought 

forward 59,375 13,369 (350) 5,800 78,194 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - - 2,237 2,237 

Impairments - (250) - - (250)

Revaluations - 3,734 - - 3,734 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (23) - 23 - 

Public dividend capital received 4,842 - - - 4,842 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2021 64,217 16,830 (350) 8,060 88,757 

Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Revaluation reserve

Other reserves

Income and expenditure reserve

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of 

establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the Department of Health and Social 

Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health and Social Care as the public 

dividend capital dividend.

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they 

reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income. Subsequent 

downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a previous gain was recognised unless 

the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Other reserves was a residual balance that was required in 2006 when the Trust was formed. The reserve was created from the opening 

net assets with taxpayer's equity from the predecessor trust.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

Trust

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward 64,217 16,807 (350) 10,198 90,872 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - - 322 322 

Impairments - (76) - - (76)

Revaluations - 1,737 - - 1,737 

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated at fair value through OCI - (20) - 20 - 

Public dividend capital received 541 - - - 541 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2022 64,758 18,448 (350) 10,540 93,396 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

Trust

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2020 - brought 

forward 59,375 13,369 (350) 6,659 79,053 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - - 3,516 3,516 

Impairments - (250) - - (250)

Revaluations - 3,711 - - 3,711 

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated at fair value through OCI - (23) - 23 - 

Public dividend capital received 4,842 - - - 4,842 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2021 64,217 16,807 (350) 10,198 90,872 

Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Revaluation reserve

Other reserves

Income and expenditure reserve

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of 

the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting 

the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health and Social Care as the public dividend capital dividend.

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse 

impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income. Subsequent downward 

movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward 

movement represents a clear consumption of economic benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Other reserves was a residual balance that was required in 2006 when the Trust was formed. The reserve was created from the opening net assets 

with taxpayer's equity from the predecessor trust.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.
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Statements of Cash Flows

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

Note £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating surplus / (deficit) 946 3,033 1,178 4,318 

Non-cash income and expense:

Depreciation and amortisation 5 10,608 13,973 7,495 9,322 

Net impairments 5 830 517 830 517 

(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets 3,761 (3,928) 3,768 (4,548)

(Increase) / decrease in inventories (78) (180) (76) (198)

Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabilities 5,383 14,085 5,305 14,014 

Increase / (decrease) in provisions (1,783) 3,562 (1,756) 3,493 

Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 19,667 31,062 16,744 26,918 

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 30 10 30 5 

Purchase and sale of financial assets / investments - - 3,731 3,568 

Purchase of intangible assets (370) (1,820) (370) (1,820)

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and investment property (9,082) (4,598) (8,781) (4,539)

Sales of Property, Plant & Equipment and investment property 315 1,730 66 1,093 

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities (9,107) (4,678) (5,324) (1,693)

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received 541 4,842 541 4,842 

PDC dividend (paid) / refunded (905) (1,073) (905) (1,073)

Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities (364) 3,769 (364) 3,769 

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,196 30,153 11,056 28,994 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward 50,714 20,561 49,051 20,057 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 50,714 20,561 49,051 20,057 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 19 60,910 50,714 60,107 49,051 

Group Trust
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Notes to the Accounts

Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

Note 1.1.1 Accounting convention

Note 1.2 Going concern

Note 1.3 Consolidation

Other subsidiaries                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

Note 1.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting 

requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the 

following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the GAM 2021/22 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting 

policies contained in the GAM follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as 

determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a choice of accounting policy, the 

accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been 

selected. The particular policies adopted are described below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the 

accounts

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible 

assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial reporting framework applicable to NHS bodies, derived from the HM Treasury 

Financial Reporting Manual, defines that the anticipated continued provision of the entity’s services in the public sector is normally sufficient evidence of going 

concern. The directors have a reasonable expectation that this will continue to be the case.

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation 

and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial asset that is not classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS). 

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised goods/services to the 

customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating 

to performance obligations satisfied in that year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a contract 

receivable will be recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than the passage of time, a contract asset will be 

recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a performance obligation that is to be satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred and 

recognised as a contract liability. 

NHS Charitable Funds

South Central Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee to South Central Ambulance Charity.  South Central Ambulance NHS Foundation 

Trust has considered the materiality of the current annual value of transactions and as a result has not consolidated the charitable fund results in to the Trust 

accounts.

The SCA Charity had total gross assets of £698k as at 31 March 2022 (2020/21: £493k).  During the 2021/22 year the Charity received income of £989k 

(2020/21: £558k) and incurred expenditure of £884k (2020/21: £586k). The results for 31 March 2022 are provisional and unaudited at this stage and are 

subject to change. During the year South Central Ambulance Service paid the charity £50k for 6 months' lease costs for the charity's Community First 

responder vehicles. The charity contributed £10k towards the costs of providing Christmas hampers to the staff of the Trust.

On 5 September 2015 the Trust established a wholly owned subsidiary company 'South Central Fleet Services Ltd'. The accounts show results for the Group 

and the Trust. The company began trading on 1 November 2015 and provides a range of fleet services to the Trust. The Trust's investment in the company is 

£441,310 of share capital and £10.228m of outstanding loans.

Subsidiary entities are those over which the Trust is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 

those returns through its power over the entity. The income, expenses, assets, liabilities, equity and reserves of subsidiaries are consolidated in full into the 

appropriate financial statement lines. The capital and reserves attributable to minority interests are included as a separate item in the Statement of Financial 

Position.

The amounts consolidated are drawn from the unaudited draft financial statements of the subsidiary for the year. Note 27.
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Revenue from NHS contracts

NHS injury cost recovery scheme

Note 1.5 Other forms of income

Grants and donations

Apprenticeship service income

Note 1.6 Expenditure on employee benefits

Pension costs 

Note 1.7 Expenditure on other goods and services

Note 1.8 Property, plant and equipment

Note 1.8.1 Recognition

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue 

expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure. Where the grants is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to the 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income once conditions attached to the grant have been met. Donations are treated in the same way as government grants.

The Trust receives income from commissioners under Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) schemes. The Trust agrees schemes with its commissioner but they 

affect how care is provided to patients. That is, the CQUIN payments are not considered distinct performance obligations in their own right; instead they form part of the 

transaction price for performance obligations under the contract. 

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services. In 2021/22 and 2020/21, the majority of the trust’s income from NHS 

commissioners was in the form of block contract arrangements. The Trust receives block funding from its commissioners, where funding envelopes are set at an Integrated Care 

System level. For the first half of the 2020/21 comparative year these blocks were set for individual NHS providers directly, but the revenue recognition principles are the same. 

The related performance obligation is the delivery of healthcare and related services during the period, with the trust’s entitlement to consideration not varying based on the 

levels of activity performed. 

The Trust also receives additional income outside of the block payments to reimburse specific costs incurred and, in 2020/21, other income top-ups to support the delivery of 

services. Reimbursement and top-up income is accounted for as variable consideration.

In 2021/22, the Elective Recovery Fund enabled systems to earn income linked to the achievement of elective activity targets including funding any increased use of independent 

sector capacity. Income earned by the system is distributed between individual entities by local agreement. Income earned from the fund is accounted for as variable 

consideration.

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has 

subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust recognises the income when performance obligations have been satisfied. In practical terms this means that 

treatment has been given, it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit, has completed the NHS2 form and confirmed there 

are no discrepancies with the treatment. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful 

compensation claims and doubtful debts in line with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime of the asset.

Where income is received for a specific activity, which is to be delivered in a subsequent financial year, that income is deferred.

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.   

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. 

Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:    

• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes

• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust

• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year and the cost of the item can be measured reliably 

• the item has a cost of at least £5,000 or collectively a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 

functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control

• items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, irrespective of their individual or collective cost

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, eg, plant and equipment, then these components are 

treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's apprenticeship service is recognised as income at the point of receipt of the training service. 

Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider from the Trust's Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for Education, the 

corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.

Short-term employee benefits

NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employer, 

general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way that 

would enable employers to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as though it is a defined contribution 

scheme: the cost to the trust is taken as equal to the employer’s pension contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The contributions are charged to 

operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the 

additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 
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Note 1.8.2 Measurement

Valuation

- Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

- Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis.

Subsequent expenditure

Depreciation

Revaluation gains and losses

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service potential in the asset are charged to 

operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of 

(i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to the extent that, the circumstances 

that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating expenditure to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it 

would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the 

original impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the 

revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are valued at depreciated historic cost 

where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not considered to be materially different from current value in existing use. 

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is 

probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the 

enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it 

meets the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that does not generate additional 

future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which 

it is incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service 

delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated. 

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of 

construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively. 

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a revaluation decrease that has previously 

been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating expenditure.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged 

to operating expenses. 

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and 

bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  

Assets are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets which are held for their service potential and are in use (ie operational assets used to deliver either 

front line services or back office functions) are measured at their current value in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential 

but are surplus with no plan to bring them back into use are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where 

they do not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying values are not materially different from those 

that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing use are determined as follows:

The Trust has an annual valuation exercise of its owned property (land and buildings) with a valuation date as at 31st March 2022. This was undertaken by 

an accredited valuer, Bomford Estates Ltd, on a property by property basis.

For specialised assets, current value in existing use is interpreted as the present value of the asset's remaining service potential, which is assumed to be at 

least equal to the cost of replacing that service potential. Specialised assets are therefore valued at their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modern 

equivalent asset (MEA) basis. An MEA basis assumes that the asset will be replaced with a modern asset of equivalent capacity and meeting the location 

requirements of the services being provided. Assets held at depreciated replacement cost have been valued on an alternative site basis where this would 

meet the location requirements.
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Note 1.8.3 De-recognition

Note 1.8.4 Donated and grant funded assets 

Note 1.8.5 Useful Economic lives of property, plant and equipment 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Land - - 

Buildings, excluding dwellings 20 70 

Dwellings 20 70 

Plant & machinery 5 15 

Transport equipment 5 7 

Information technology 3 5 

Furniture & fittings 5 15 

Note 1.9 Intangible assets 

Note 1.9.1 Recognition 

Note 1.9.2 Measurement 

Amortisation

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met: 

• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary for such sales;

• the sale must be highly probable i.e.:

         - management are committed to a plan to sell the asset

         - an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale

         - the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price

         - the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘held for sale’ and

         - the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant changes made to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value less costs to sell’.  Depreciation ceases to be charged. 

Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the 

asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless 

the donor has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the 

donation/grant is deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, plant and equipment. 

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in the table below:

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term, unless the trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease 

term in which case the assets are depreciated in the same manner as owned assets above. During the previous year the depreciation policy has changed to reduce the useful 

economic lives of vehicles from a maximum of 9 years to a maximum of 7 years, this policy change was in line with the recommendations of the Carter Report for ambulance 

trusts to reduce the useful economic lives of ambulances.

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from 

contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust and where 

the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Internally generated intangible assets

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised.

Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:

• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use;

• the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;

• the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;

• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits, e.g., the presence of a market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for 

internal use, the usefulness of the asset;

• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete the development and sell or use the asset and;

• the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not 

integral to the operation of hardware, eg application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of 

operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible assets are valued at the lower of depreciated 

replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property, 

plant and equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus, with no plan to bring it back into use, is valued at fair value under IFRS 13 if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 

40 of IFRS 5.

Page 9 130



South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Annual Accounts 2021/22

Note 1.9.3 Useful economic life of intangible assets 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Purchased intangible assets - Software 3 5 

Note 1.10 Inventories

Note 1.11 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recognition

Classification and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or amortised cost of a 

financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as a financing income or expense.  In the case of loans held from the 

Department of Health and Social Care, the effective interest rate is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction costs except where the asset or 

liability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is taken as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to 

quoted market prices or valuation techniques.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised and measured in accordance with 

the accounting policy for leases described below.

Financial assets or liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows and where cash flows are 

solely payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract and other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations 

under lease arrangements and loans receivable and payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment 

(for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 

financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using the first in, first out (FIFO) method. This is 

considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to high turnover of stocks. A review is made where necessary for obsolete, slow moving and 

defective stocks and written off where considered appropriate.

In 2020/21 and 2021/22 the Trust received inventories including personal protective equipment from the Department of Health and Social Care at nil cost. In 

line with the GAM and applying the principles of the IFRS Conceptual Framework, the Trust has accounted for the receipt of these inventories at a deemed 

cost, reflecting the best available approximation of an imputed market value for the transaction based on the cost of acquisition by the Department. The 

value of the deemed income and expenditure was £0.383m (2020/21: £3.724m). See note 15.

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument, and as a result has a legal right 

to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument. The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations 

which give rise to arrangements that in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, 

sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is 

made.
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De-recognition

Note 1.12 Leases

Impairment of financial assets

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and contract assets, the Trust recognises an allowance for 

expected credit losses. 

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, measuring expected losses as 

at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other financial assets, the loss allowance is initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected 

credit losses (stage 1) and subsequently at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk assessed for the financial asset significantly 

increases (stage 2).

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the reporting date are measured as the 

difference between the assets gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets original effective 

interest rate. 

Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and reduce the net carrying value of the financial asset in 

the Statement of Financial Position.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at “fair value through income and 

expenditure” are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a 

result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 

present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly.

All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks 

and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee, the Trust doesn't have any 

finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Note 1.12.1 " The Trust as lessee "

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the trust, the asset is recorded as property, plant and equipment and a 

corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease 

payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item of property plant and equipment. 

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The 

annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, 

cancelled or expires.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals 

and charged to operating expenses over the life of the lease.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification for each is assessed separately. 

Note 1.13  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments 

that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of 

South Central Ambulance Foundation Trust's cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at current values.
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Note 1.14  Provisions 

Nominal rate Prior year rate

Short-term Up to 5 years 0.47% Minus 0.02%

Medium-term After 5 years up to 10 years 0.70% 0.18%

Long-term After 10 years up to 40 years 0.95% 1.99%

Exceeding 40 years 0.66% 1.99%

Inflation rate Prior year rate

Year 1 4.00% 1.20%

Year 2 2.60% 1.60%

Into perpetuity 2.00% 2.00%

Clinical negligence costs

Non-clinical risk pooling 

The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the 

trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership 

contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises. 

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future events not wholly within 

the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 23 where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 23, unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 

wholly within the entity’s control; or

• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise or for which the amount 

of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for which it is probable that 

there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The amount recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is 

significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury's discount rates effective from 31 March 2022:

HM Treasury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected future cash flows are therefore adjusted for the 

impact of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation rates are set by HM Treasury, effective from 31 March 2022:

Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use the HM Treasury's pension discount rate of minus 1.30% in real terms (2020/21: 

minus 0.95%).

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which, in return, settles all 

clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with 

the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf of the trust is disclosed at note 22 but is not 

recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Note 1.15 Contingencies
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Note 1.17 Value added tax 

The subsidiary company, South Central Fleet Services Limited, is VAT registered.

Note 1.18 Corporation tax

Note 1.19 Losses and special payments

Note 1.20 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations

Note 1.21 Climate Change Levy

Note 1.22 Foreign Exchange

Note 1.23 Gifts

The functional and presentational currency of the trust is sterling.

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction. 

Where the trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial Position date:

• monetary items are translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction and

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined.

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the Statement of Financial Position date) are 

recognised in income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same manner as other gains and losses on these items.

Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any return. Gifts include all transactions economically 

equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its expected useful life, and the sale or lease of assets at below market value.

Expenditure on the climate change levy is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred, based on the prevailing chargeable rates for 

energy consumption.

South Central Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust has determined that it has no corporation tax liability as the Trust's profit generated from non - operational 

income falls below the threshold amount of £50,000.

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been adopted early in 2021/22.

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their 

nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are 

divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional 

headings in expenditure on an accruals basis.

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on an accrual basis with the exception of 

provisions for future losses.

Note 1.16 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the 

predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC is recorded at the value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM 

Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets 

less the value of all liabilities, with certain additions and deductions as defined in the PDC dividend policy issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. 

This policy is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhs-trusts-and-foundation-trusts. 

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on 

the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual accounts. The dividend calculated is not revised should any adjustment 

to net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.

Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. 

Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or 

input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
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Note 1.24 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted

IFRS 16 Leases

£000

Estimated impact on 1 April 2022 statement of financial position

Additional right of use assets recognised for existing operating leases 47,629 

Additional lease obligations recognised for existing operating leases (38,015)

Changes to other statement of financial position line items - 

Net impact on net assets on 1 April 2022 9,614 

Estimated in-year impact in 2022/23

Additional depreciation on right of use assets (5,686)

Additional finance costs on lease liabilities (761)

Lease rentals no longer charged to operating expenditure 6,285 

Other impact on income / expenditure - 

Estimated impact on surplus / deficit in 2022/23 (162)

Estimated increase in capital additions for new leases commencing in 2022/23 26,281 

Note 1.25 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Note 1.26 Sources of estimation uncertainty

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease  and other interpretations and is applicable in the 

public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2022.  The standard provides a single accounting model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation 

in the statement of financial position for most leases: some leases are exempt through application of practical expedients explained below. For those 

recognised in the statement of financial position the standard also requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific circumstances after the 

commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the distinction between operating and finance leases will remain and the accounting will be largely 

unchanged.

In the application of the Foundation Trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying 

assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects 

only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying 

assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 

only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Charitable Funds - see note 1.3. the Trust is the corporate trustee of the linked charity, South Central Ambulance Charity. The Trust has assessed its 

relationship under IFRS10 and determined it to be a subsidiary because the Trust is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns and other benefits and other 

benefits for itself, patients and staff from its involvement with the charitable fund and has the ability to affect those returns and other benefits through its 

power over the fund. However, the charitable funds are immaterial in the context of the group and therefore transactions have not been consolidated. Details 

of the transactions with the charity are included in the related party transactions note (note 27).

An impairment review has been carried out on the inter-company loans, the exposure to potential default is £10.228m (2020/21: £13.703m) with vehicles 

asset values of £5.386m (2020/21: £7.916m), this results in a potential maximum theoretical loss on the loans of £4.842m (2020/21: £5.786m) or 47.3% 

(2020/21: 42.2%). The probability of default has been calculated at 5.25% (2020/21: 6.5%) based on the EU and UK and Global trailing 12 month speculative 

grade default rate for vehicles. The theoretical write down of the loans would be 5.25% of the £4.842m which would result in a theoretical write down of 

£254k (2020/21: £376k), sensitivity analysis is £48k (2020/21: £58k) per 1%. No impairment write down has been provided during this financial year due to 

the non-material nature of the calculated theoretical default and due to the loan repayments from South Central Fleet Services Limited being repaid on 

schedule. 

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The trust will apply this definition to new leases only and will grandfather its 

assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a lease.

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the trust will apply the standard retrospectively without restatement and with the cumulative effect of initially applying 

the standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating leases with a remaining lease term of more than 12 

months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease liability will be recognised equal to the value of remaining lease payments discounted on 

transition at the trust’s incremental borrowing rate. The trust's incremental borrowing rate will be defined by HM Treasury. For 2022, this rate is 0.95%. The 

related right of use asset will be measured equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments. For existing peppercorn leases not 

classified as finance leases, a right of use asset will be measured at current value in existing use or fair value. The difference between the asset value and 

the calculated lease liability will be recognised in the income and expenditure reserve on transition. No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2022 for existing 

finance leases.

For leases commencing in 2022/23, the trust will not recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or 

for leases of low value assets (less than £5,000).  Right of use assets will be subsequently measured on a basis consistent with owned assets and 

depreciated over the length of the lease term. 

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the Trust will apply the standard to the existing lease portfolio as well as to subsequent leases. It is estimated that 

the right of use assets will be £37m and these will be added to the assets of the Trust along with lease liabilities of £37m. The annual depreciation charge on 

the lease portfolio from 1st April 2023 is estimated to be £5.218m with an interest charge of £0.666m, the reduction in rentals under operating lease of 

£5.675m. The net impact on net assets is £9.614m and this is due to the recognition of an asset on a peppercorn rent, the standard requires that the 

peppercorn assets are capitalised with the corresponding credit taken to reserves. 

The trust has estimated the impact of applying IFRS 16 in 2022/23 on the opening statement of financial position and the in-year impact on the statement of 

comprehensive income and capital additions as follows:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that management has made in the process of applying the 

Foundation Trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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Note 2 Operating Segments

Each segment is reported separately in the monthly Board report. Emergency Services include the 999 service, NHS 111 Call Handling,

Education and Training,  the Hazardous Area Response Team, National Covid -19 Services run by the Trust and the additional to the Trust costs 

of Covid-19. Non-Emergency Services including Patient Transport Services (NEPTS) and Logistic Services.

Direct costs include employees and non employee costs (staff costs, drugs, medical equipment, vehicle costs etc.) The Trust only reports

contribution before overheads by service line reporting to the Trust Board at Public Board meetings.

Emergency 

Services

Non 

Emergency 

Services

Corporate Sub-Total *NHS Pension Total

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Income 259,094 56,918 7,283 323,295 8,212 331,507

Direct Costs (212,699) (49,935) (7,283) (269,917) (8,212) (278,129)

Contribution Operational Activities 46,395 6,983 0 53,378 0 53,378

Total overheads (42,474) (42,474)

Depreciation and amortisation (10,608) (10,608)

PSF/FRF Funding (previously known as STF Funding). 0 0

Total Costs Before Dividends and Interest (53,082) (53,082)

Operating Surplus(Deficit) 296 296

* See Note 3.1 and Note 7.

Emergency 

Services

Non 

Emergency 

Services

Corporate Sub-Total *NHS Pension Total

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Income 272,078 53,139 6,403 331,620 8,101 339,721

Direct Costs (220,350) (47,294) (6,403) (274,047) (8,101) (282,148)

Contribution Operational Activities 51,727 5,845 0 57,572 0 57,572

Total overheads (40,566) (40,566)

Depreciation and amortisation (13,974) (13,974)

PSF/FRF Funding (previously known as STF Funding). 0 0

Total Costs Before Dividends and Interest (54,539) (54,539)

Operating Surplus(Deficit) 3,033 3,033

* See Note 3.1 and Note 7.
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Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities (Group)

All income from patient care activities relates to contract income recognised in line with accounting policy 1.4

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Ambulance services

A & E income * 257,406 249,368 

Patient transport services income 55,081 51,528 

Other income 1,505 989 

All services

Additional pension contribution central funding** 8,212 8,101 

Total income from activities 322,204 309,986 

Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

2021/22 2020/21

Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000 

NHS England* 21,008 44,721 

Clinical commissioning groups 287,915 249,518 

Department of Health and Social Care 535 - 

Other NHS providers 4,500 3,431 

NHS other** 7,037 11,784 

Local authorities 144 69 

Injury cost recovery scheme 250 245 

Non NHS: other 815 218 

Total income from activities 322,204 309,986 

* NHS England income includes £11.0m for the CCAS service and related services (2020/21 £29.0m)

** NHS Other income includes £7.0m for the CRS service (2020/21 £11.9m)

** The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge) 

from 1 April 2019. Since 2019/20, NHS providers have continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the 

additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost and related funding have been 

recognised in these accounts.

* As part of the coronavirus pandemic response, transaction flows were simplified in the NHS and providers and their 

commissioners moved onto block contract payments at the start of 2020/21. In the second half of the 2020/2021 year, a 

revised financial framework built on these arrangements but with a greater focus on system partnership and providers 

derived most of their income from these system envelopes. This arrangement continued in 2021/22 with the 2020/21 

second half framework being used for the whole of the year.

The Trust continued to operate the Covid Response Service (CRS) during 2021/22 in a mixture of active and dormant 

states. The Trust also continued to operate the Covid Clinical Assessment Service (CCAS) as well as a number of other 

related services including Covid Vaccination Helpline, Vaccine Resolution Service and Vaccination Status Service. The 

income for both CRS, CCAS and the related services are accounted for within A&E income.

Page 17 137



South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Annual Accounts 2021/22

Note 4.1 Other operating income (Group) 

Total Total

£000 £000 

Education and training 4,621 3,218 

Non-patient care services to other bodies 1,832 1,609 

Reimbursement and top up funding* 49 19,747 

Income in respect of employee benefits accounted on a gross basis 611 - 

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 383 3,734 

Other income** 1,807 1,426 

Total other operating income 9,303 29,734 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 9,303 29,734 

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Income from services designated as commissioner requested services 257,406            249,368             

Income from services not designated as commissioner requested services 56,586              52,517               

Total 313,992            301,885             

Note 4.2 Income from activities arising from commissioner requested services

Under the terms of its provider licence, the trust is required to analyse the level of income from activities that has arisen 

from commissioner requested and non-commissioner requested services. Commissioner requested services are defined in 

the provider licence and are services that commissioners believe would need to be protected in the event of provider 

failure. This information is provided in the table below:

2021/22 2020/21

* Staff vaccination NHS reimbursement £49k (2020/21: £nil). Comparatives for 2020/2021 contain the reimbursement and 

top up funding as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and was formed of three main components; an initial block top up of 

£4.3m to get the Trust to a breakeven position, reimbursement for Covid-19 expenses in months 1-6 of £11.9m and a 

compensatory amount for lost income resulting from the pandemic of £2.5m.

**Other income includes £144k (2020/2021: £596k) of income related to ICT system support for Isle of Wight Trust, £233k 

(2020/2021: £158k) apprenticeship levy, income in respective of call centre services for third parties £765k (2020/2021: 

£nil) and income from third parties within SCFS Ltd £273k (2020/2021: £nil).
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Note 5.1 Operating expenses (Group)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 1,701 850 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies - Accident & Emergency 12,409 17,377 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies - Patient Transport 20,879 18,792 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies - Other** 11,929 - 

Staff and executive directors costs 203,690 211,419 

Remuneration of non-executive directors 340 311 

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 5,630 5,587 

Supplies and services - general 2,186 3,138 

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 506 382 

Donated Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 383 3,724 

Consultancy costs 252 382 

Establishment 4,398 6,135 

Premises 6,487 6,435 

Information Technology 10,913 8,784 

Transport (including patient travel) 17,820 15,830 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 9,319 11,911 

Amortisation on intangible assets 1,289 2,062 

Net impairments 830 517 

Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets (84) (53)

Change in provisions discount rate(s) 100 134 

Fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit 114 53 

other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) 16 13 

Internal audit costs 74 78 

Clinical negligence 2,638 6,045 

Legal fees 108 1,132 

Insurance 1,913 2,698 

Education and training 3,071 3,357 

Rentals under operating leases 8,579 7,764 

Hospitality 102 46 

External services, eg external payroll* 1,962 970 

Other 1,007 814 

Total 330,561 336,687 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 330,561 336,687 

*Other services includes £872k from 111 managed service contract (2020/21: £652k)

** The purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies - Other relates to the subcontractor costs for the Hampshire IUC 

contract that commenced in June 2021
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Note 5.2 Other auditor remuneration (Group)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:

1. Audit of accounts of any associate of the trust 16 13 

Total 16 13 

Note 5.3 Limitation on auditor's liability (Group)

Note 6 Impairment of assets (Group)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from:

Loss or damage from normal operations 830 517 

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 830 517 

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve 76 250 

Total net impairments 906 767 

The limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work is £1m (2020/21: £2m).

The impairment was in respect of building works rendering the previous building works as obsolete.
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Note 7 Employee benefits (Group)

2021/22 2020/21

Total Total

£000 £000 

Salaries and wages 149,569 162,283 

Social security costs 15,515 15,510 

Apprenticeship levy 769 778 

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions* 27,037 26,882 

Temporary staff (including agency) 10,800 5,966 

Total gross staff costs 203,690 211,419 

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff - - 

Total staff costs 203,690 211,419 

Note 7.1 Retirements due to ill-health (Group)

The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.

Further details of directors' remuneration can be found in the remuneration report which is included in the Trust Annual 

Report 2021/22.

*The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge) from 

1 April 2019. For both 2020/21 and 2021/22, NHS providers continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the 

additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost of £8.212m (2020/21: £8.101m) and 

related £8.212m (2020/21: £8.101m) funding have been recognised in these accounts.

During the year to 31 March 2022 the highest paid director was the Chief Executive who was paid a salary between 

£185k and £190k and was assessed as in receipt of benefit in kind of £7k.

In the year ended 31 March 2022, seven directors (2021: seven) accrued benefits under a defined benefits pension 

scheme.

During 2021/22 there were 2 early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (2 in the year ended 31 

March 2021).  The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £176k (£78k in 2020/21).  
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Note 8 Pension costs

Defined Contribution Schemes

The company operates a defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all new employees and existing employees. The scheme is operated by NEST, a 

scheme established by the government to aid the auto-enrolment process and details can be accessed on the NEST website www.nestpensions.org.uk. The assets 

of the schemes are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund. 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules of the Schemes can be found 

on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other 

bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would 

enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution 

scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period. 

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at the reporting date by 

a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. 

An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the end of the reporting period. 

This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, 

and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2022, is based on valuation 

data as 31 March 2021, updated to 31 March 2022 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology 

prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account recent demographic experience), 

and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme 

Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results of this valuation set the employer 

contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay. The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the 

employer cost cap that was set following the 2012 valuation. In January 2019, the Government announced a pause to the cost control element of the 2016 

valuations, due to the uncertainty around member benefits caused by the discrimination ruling relating to the McCloud case. 

HMT published valuation directions dated 7 October 2021 (see Amending Directions 2021) that set out the technical detail of how the costs of remedy are included in 

the 2016 valuation process.  Following these directions, the scheme actuary has completed the cost control element of the 2016 valuation for the NHS Pension 

Scheme, which concludes no changes to benefits or member contributions are required.  The 2016 valuation reports can be found on the NHS Pensions website at 

https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/nhs-pension-scheme-accounts-and-valuation-reports.

Page 22
142



South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Annual Accounts 2021/22

Note 9 Operating leases (Group)

Note 9.1 South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust as a lessor

Note 9.2 South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust as a lessee

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Operating lease expense

Minimum lease payments 8,579 7,764 8,446 7,630 

Total 8,579 7,764 8,446 7,630 

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Future minimum lease payments due relating to building leases: 

- not later than one year; 3,557 3,058 3,390 2,892 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 12,608 10,847 11,941 10,183 

- later than five years. 20,589 9,160 10,589 7,998 

Total 36,754 23,065 25,920 21,073 

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Future minimum lease payments due relating to other leases: 

- not later than one year; 2,961 3,241 5,289 3,241 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 8,454 6,728 14,637 6,728 

Total 11,415 9,969 19,926 9,969 

Note 10 Other gains / (losses) (Group)

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 

Gains on disposal of assets 272 154 

Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets 272 154 

Note 11 Corporation Tax

The Group had no operating lease income in 2021/22 (2020/21: nil).

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where South Central Ambulance 

Service NHS Foundation Trust is the lessee.

Group Trust

The Trust has determined that it has no corporation tax liability from its subsidiary, South Central Fleet Services Ltd, in the qualifying period. The Trust does 

not have any other qualifying income from any of its other activities.
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Note 12.1 Intangible assets - 2021/22

Group

Software  

licences

Intangible assets 

under 

construction Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2021 - brought forward 10,773 2,109 12,882 

Additions 184 186 370 

Reclassifications 1,977 (1,977) - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2022 12,934 318 13,252 

Amortisation at 1 April 2021 - brought forward 9,853 - 9,853 

Provided during the year 1,289 - 1,289 

Amortisation at 31 March 2022 11,142 - 11,142 

Net book value at 31 March 2022 1,792 318 2,110 

Net book value at 1 April 2021 920 2,109 3,029 

Note 12.2 Intangible assets - 2020/21

Group

Software  

licences

Intangible assets 

under 

construction Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - as previously 

stated 10,494 606 11,100 

Additions 126 1,694 1,820 

Reclassifications 191 (191) - 

Disposals / derecognition (38) - (38)

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2021 10,773 2,109 12,882 

Amortisation at 1 April 2020 - as previously stated 7,829 - 7,829 

Provided during the year 2,062 - 2,062 

Disposals / derecognition (38) - (38)

Amortisation at 31 March 2021 9,853 - 9,853 

Net book value at 31 March 2021 920 2,109 3,029 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 2,665 606 3,271 
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Note 12.3 Intangible assets - 2021/22

Trust

Software  

licences

Intangible 

assets under 

construction Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2021 - brought forward 10,730 2,109 12,839 

Additions 184 186 370 

Reclassifications 1,977 (1,977) - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2022 12,891 318 13,209 

Amortisation at 1 April 2021 - brought forward 9,810 - 9,810 

Provided during the year 1,289 - 1,289 

Amortisation at 31 March 2022 11,099 - 11,099 

Net book value at 31 March 2022 1,792 318 2,110 

Net book value at 1 April 2021 920 2,109 3,029 

Note 12.4 Intangible assets - 2020/21

Trust

Software  

licences

Intangible 

assets under 

construction Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - as previously 

stated 10,451 606 11,057 

Additions 126 1,694 1,820 

Reclassifications 191 (191) - 

Disposals / derecognition (38) - (38)

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2021 10,730 2,109 12,839 

Amortisation at 1 April 2020 - as previously stated 7,786 - 7,786 

Provided during the year 2,062 - 2,062 

Disposals / derecognition (38) - (38)

Amortisation at 31 March 2021 9,810 - 9,810 

Net book value at 31 March 2021 920 2,109 3,029 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 2,665 606 3,271 
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Note 13.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2021/22

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward 9,440 49,316 7,994 15,947 33,173 5,756 1,611 123,237 

Additions - 264 2,728 793 304 1,134 119 5,342 

Impairments - (906) - - - - - (906)

Revaluations 50 1,110 - - - - - 1,160 

Reclassifications - 270 (5,213) 739 91 4,053 60 - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - (1,725) (4,661) - - (6,386)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2022 9,490 50,054 5,509 15,754 28,907 10,943 1,790 122,447 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2021 - 

brought forward - 11,644 - 9,909 24,488 4,504 1,284 51,829 

Provided during the year - 2,367 - 2,064 3,359 1,365 164 9,319 

Revaluations - (554) - - - - - (554)

In year adjustment to correct opening balance - - - - 104 - - 104 

Disposals / derecognition - - - (1,725) (4,618) - - (6,343)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2022 - 13,457 - 10,248 23,333 5,869 1,448 54,355 

Net book value at 31 March 2022 9,490 36,597 5,509 5,506 5,574 5,074 342 68,092 

Net book value at 1 April 2021 9,440 37,672 7,994 6,038 8,685 1,252 327 71,408 

Note 13.2 Property, plant and equipment - 2020/21

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - as 

previously stated 9,277 43,594 5,954 16,364 37,625 8,632 1,552 122,998 

Additions - 1,023 5,133 1,597 59 245 59 8,116 

Revaluations 163 2,456 - - - - - 2,619 

Reclassifications - 2,331 (2,773) 25 165 252 - - 

Disposals / derecognition - (88) (320) (2,039) (4,676) (3,373) - (10,496)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2021 9,440 49,316 7,994 15,947 33,173 5,756 1,611 123,237 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2020 - as 

previously stated - 10,028 - 10,235 21,607 7,028 1,218 50,116 

Provided during the year - 2,052 - 1,402 7,542 849 66 11,911 

Impairments - 767 - - - - - 767 

Revaluations - (1,115) - - - - - (1,115)

Disposals / derecognition - (88) - (1,728) (4,661) (3,373) - (9,850)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021 - 11,644 - 9,909 24,488 4,504 1,284 51,829 

Net book value at 31 March 2021 9,440 37,672 7,994 6,038 8,685 1,252 327 71,408 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 9,277 33,566 5,954 6,129 16,018 1,604 334 72,882 
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Note 13.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2021/22

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2022

Owned - purchased 8,502 35,394 5,509 5,506 5,574 5,074 342 65,901 

Owned - donated/granted 988 1,203 - - - - - 2,191 

NBV total at 31 March 2022 9,490 36,597 5,509 5,506 5,574 5,074 342 68,092 

Note 13.4 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2020/21

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2021

Owned - purchased 8,452 36,548 7,994 6,038 8,685 1,252 327 69,296 

Owned - donated/granted 988 1,124 - - - - - 2,112 

NBV total at 31 March 2021 9,440 37,672 7,994 6,038 8,685 1,252 327 71,408 
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Note 13.5 Property, plant and equipment - 2021/22

Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward 9,440 48,630 7,994 13,367 17,523 5,489 1,611 104,054 

Additions - 264 2,728 776 - 1,134 119 5,021 

Impairments - (906) - - - - - (906)

Revaluations 50 1,134 - - - - - 1,184 

Reclassifications - 270 (5,213) 739 91 4,053 60 - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - (1,725) (3,896) - - (5,621)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2022 9,490 49,392 5,509 13,157 13,718 10,676 1,790 103,732 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2021 - brought 

forward - 11,536 - 9,309 16,752 4,304 1,284 43,185 

Provided during the year - 2,324 - 1,745 674 1,299 164 6,206 

Revaluations - (553) - - - - - (553)

Disposals / derecognition - - - (1,725) (3,896) - - (5,621)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2022 - 13,307 - 9,329 13,530 5,603 1,448 43,217 

Net book value at 31 March 2022 9,490 36,085 5,509 3,828 188 5,073 342 60,515 

Net book value at 1 April 2021 9,440 37,094 7,994 4,058 771 1,185 327 60,869 

Note 13.6 Property, plant and equipment - 2020/21

Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - as previously 

stated 9,277 42,931 5,631 13,392 22,034 8,365 1,552 103,182 

Additions - 1,023 5,136 1,596 - 245 59 8,059 

Revaluations 163 2,433 - - - - - 2,596 

Reclassifications - 2,331 (2,773) 25 150 267 - - 

Disposals / derecognition - (88) - (1,646) (4,661) (3,388) - (9,783)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2021 9,440 48,630 7,994 13,367 17,523 5,489 1,611 104,054 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2020 - as 

previously stated - 9,963 - 9,908 18,058 6,894 1,218 46,041 

Provided during the year - 2,009 - 1,047 3,355 783 66 7,260 

Impairments - 767 - - - - - 767 

Revaluations - (1,115) - - - - - (1,115)

Disposals / derecognition - (88) - (1,646) (4,661) (3,373) - (9,768)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021 - 11,536 - 9,309 16,752 4,304 1,284 43,185 

Net book value at 31 March 2021 9,440 37,094 7,994 4,058 771 1,185 327 60,869 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 9,277 32,968 5,631 3,484 3,976 1,471 334 57,141 
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Note 13.7 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2020/21

Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2022

Owned - purchased 8,502 34,882 5,509 3,828 188 5,073 342 58,324 

Owned - donated / granted 988 1,203 - - - - - 2,191 

NBV total at 31 March 2022 9,490 36,085 5,509 3,828 188 5,073 342 60,515 

Note 13.8 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2020/21

Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2021

Owned - purchased 8,452 35,970 7,994 4,058 771 1,185 327 58,757 

Owned - government granted 988 1,124 - - - - - 2,112 

NBV total at 31 March 2021 9,440 37,094 7,994 4,058 771 1,185 327 60,869 
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Note 14 Investments in subsidiaries

Note 15 Inventories

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Consumables 903 959 511 569 

Energy 317 183 317 183 

Total inventories 1,220 1,142 828 752 

These inventories were recognised as additions to inventory at deemed cost with the corresponding benefit recognised in 

income. The utilisation of these items is included in the expenses disclosed above.

The deemed cost of these inventories was charged directly to expenditure on receipt with the corresponding benefit 

recognised in income.

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust purchased 441,310 ordinary shares of £1 each in South Central 

Fleet Services Ltd in the 2015/2016 year. This represents a 100% direct ownership of South Central Fleet Services Ltd 

which is incorporated in England and Wales. This subsidiary company is included in the consolidation.

In response to the COVID 19 pandemic, the Department of Health and Social Care centrally procured personal protective 

equipment and passed these to NHS providers free of charge. During 2021/22 the Trust received £383k (2020/21: 

£3,724k) of items purchased by Department of Health and Social Care.

Group Trust

Group inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £0k (2020/21: £0k).  Write-down of group inventories 

recognised as expenses for the year were £0k (2020/21: £0k).

Inter-entity balances, transactions and gains/losses are eliminated in full on consolidation. IFRS16 will not be adopted by 

the NHS until 2022/23, however the subsidiary company is required to report on an IFRS basis with the IFRS16 

adjustments reversed out on consolidation. Included within the subsidiary company's unaudited 2021/22 accounts will be 

an amount of £1.422m right of use asset (2020/21 audited: £1.551m) along with a £1.639m lease liability (2020/21 

audited: £1.747m), of which £0.112m is due within 1 year (2020/21 audited: £0.108m), £0.507m due within 2 - 5 years 

(2020/21 audited: £473m) and £1.020m due after 5 years (2020/21 audited : £1.166m). On the profit and loss account will 

be a £0.129m depreciation charge (2020/21 audited: £0.129m) which is shown in the consolidated accounts as an 

operating lease expense. The audit of the subsidiary is carried out by Azets Audit Services and is carried out at a later 

date than these consolidated accounts. The figures stated above for the unaudited 2021/22 accounts are provisional and 

are subject to change.
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31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current

Contract receivables 9,497 14,529 9,324 14,526 

Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets (297) (381) (297) (381)

Prepayments (non-PFI) 6,350 5,071 6,256 4,970 

Interest receivable 19 - 19 - 

PDC dividend receivable 240 295 240 295 

VAT receivable - 12 816 673 

Other receivables 497 597 496 595 

Total current receivables 16,306 20,123 16,854 20,678 

Non-current

Other receivables 20 - 20 - 

Total non-current receivables 20 - 20 - 

Of which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 8,188 13,562 8,188 13,562 

Non-current 20 - 20 - 

The majority of trade receivables are due from clinical commissioning groups, as commissioners for NHS patient care 

services. As clinical commissioning groups are funded by Government no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

Group Trust

Note 16.1 Receivables

Non-current receivables totalling £20k (2020/21: £nil) are in respect of the 2019/20 Pension Allowance Charge 

Compensation Scheme (PAACCS). 
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# Note 16.2 Allowances for credit losses - 2021/22

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

All other 

receivables

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

All other 

receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Allowances as at 1 Apr 2021 - brought forward 381 - 381 - 

Changes in existing allowances (84) - (84) - 

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2022 297 - 297 - 

# Note 16.3 Allowances for credit losses - 2020/21

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

All other 

receivables

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

All other 

receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Allowances as at 1 Apr 2020 - as previously stated 434 - 434 - 

Changes in existing allowances (53) - (53) - 

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2021 381 - 381 - 

The provision relates to £195k injury cost recovery (2020/21: £190k), £87k trade receivables (2020/21: £99k) and £15k 

overpaid salaries (2020/21: £92k).

Group Trust

Group Trust
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# Note 17 Other financial assets

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

Current £000 £000 £000 £000 

Loans and receivables - - 2,432 2,748 

Total other current assets - - 2,432 2,748 

Non-current

Share Capital - - 441 441 

Loans and receivables - - 6,813 10,228 

Total other non-current assets - - 7,254 10,669 

# Note 18 Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in 

disposal groups at 1 April - 930 - 930 

Assets sold in year - (930) - (930)

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in 

disposal groups at 31 March - - - - 

Note 19 Cash and cash equivalents movements

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April           50,714           20,561           49,051           20,057 

Net change in year           10,196           30,153           11,056           28,994 

At 31 March           60,910           50,714           60,107           49,051 

Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand                803             1,663 - - 

Cash with the Government Banking Service           60,107           49,051           60,107           49,051 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP           60,910           50,714           60,107           49,051 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF           60,910           50,714           60,107           49,051 

Group Trust

Other financial assets represent 9 loans made to South Central Fleet Services Ltd to purchase ambulances and 1 for the 

refurbishment of the Milton Park premises.

The Trust have made a total of 10 loans of £22.070m which range from 5 to 10 years, all attracting interest of 3.5%, at 

31 March 2022 an amount of £10.228m was outstanding (2020/21: £13.703m).

An impairment review has been carried out on the inter-company loans, the exposure to potential default is £10.228m 

(2020/21: £13.703m) with vehicles asset values of £5.386m (2020/21: £7.916m), this results in a potential maximum 

theoretical loss on the loans of £4.842m (2020/21: £5.786m) or 47.3% (2020/21: 42.2%). The probability of default has 

been calculated at 5.25% (2020/21: 6.5%) based on the EU and UK and Global trailing 12 month speculative grade 

default rate for vehicles. The theoretical write down of the loans would be 5.25% of the £4.842m which would result in a 

theoretical write down of £254k (2020/21: £376k), sensitivity analysis is £48k (2020/21: £58k) per 1%. No impairment 

write down has been provided during this financial year due to the non-material nature of the calculated theoretical 

default and due to the loan repayments from South Central Fleet Services Limited being repaid on schedule. 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily 

convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Group Trust

TrustGroup

During 2020/21 land and buildings in Bletchley valued at £930k were disposed of at market value.
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# Note 20.1 Trade and other payables

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current 

Trade payables 7,367 2,712 7,256 2,650 

Capital payables 775 4,515 755 4,515 

Accruals 31,321 30,347 30,873 29,790 

Social security costs 2,280 2,444 2,239 2,418 

VAT payables 134 - - - 

Other taxes payable 1,563 1,845 1,553 1,827 

Other payables 73 7 73 4 

Total current trade and other payables 43,513 41,870 42,749 41,204 

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 4,010 1,171 4,010 1,171 

Non-current - - - - 

Note 20.2 Early retirements in NHS payables above

Note 20.3 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance March 2022 March 2022 March 2021 March 2021

Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables;

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 42,366 179,744 48,599 164,813

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target           40,349         175,182 45,962 159,202

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 95.2% 97.5% 94.6% 96.6%

NHS Payables;

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 736 7,454 621 5,923

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 715 7,431 604 5,907

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 97.1% 99.7% 97.3% 99.7%

Group Trust

Accruals include £2,519k outstanding pension contributions as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: £2,628k).

There were no early retirement payments in the above.

The Trust will continue to try to pay invoices from its suppliers promptly and will strive to pay all valid invoices by the due date, 

or within 30 days of receipt of invoice in accordance with the Better Payment Practice Code.
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Note 21.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis (Group)

Group

Pensions: 

early 

departure 

costs

Pensions: 

injury 

benefits Legal claims Other Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2021 2,939 72 91 12,687 15,789 

Change in the discount rate 100 - - - 100 

Arising during the year 80 5 58 1,071 1,214 

Utilised during the year (178) (27) (41) (2,164) (2,410)

Reversed unused (135) - - (552) (687)

Unwinding of discount 11 - - - 11 

At 31 March 2022 2,817 50 108 11,042 14,017 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 172 23 108 9,111 9,414 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 607 27 - 422 1,056 

- later than five years. 2,038 - - 1,509 3,547 

Total 2,817 50 108 11,042 14,017 

Note 21.2 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis (Trust)

Trust

Pensions: 

early 

departure 

costs

Pensions: 

injury 

benefits Legal claims Other Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2021 2,939 72 91 12,618 15,720 

Change in the discount rate 100 - - - 100 

Arising during the year 80 5 58 1,071 1,214 

Utilised during the year (178) (27) (41) (2,096) (2,342)

Reversed unused (135) - - (593) (728)

Unwinding of discount 11 - - - 11 

At 31 March 2022 2,817 50 108 11,000 13,975 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 172 23 108 9,069 9,372 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 607 27 - 422 1,056 

- later than five years. 2,038 - - 1,509 3,547 

Total 2,817 50 108 11,000 13,975 

* Other provisions include £3,905k (2020/21: £4,684k) ongoing costs arising from the management of closure activities including 

the retention of clinical records, £4,691k (2020/21: £4,897k) staff related costs, £933k (2020/21: £634k) property dilapidations 

and £2,038k (2020/21: £1,769k) provision for credit notes.

* Other provisions include £3,905k (2020/21: £4,684k) ongoing costs arising from the management of closure activities including 

the retention of clinical records, £4,650k (2020/21: £4,828k) staff related costs, £933k (2020/21: £634k) property dilapidations 

and £2,038k (2020/21: £1,769k) provision for credit notes.
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Note 22 Clinical negligence liabilities

Note 23 Contingent assets and liabilities

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Value of contingent liabilities 

NHS Resolution legal claims (101) (54) (101) (54)

Gross value of contingent liabilities (101) (54) (101) (54)

Net value of contingent liabilities (101) (54) (101) (54)

Net value of contingent assets - - - - 

Note 24 Contractual capital commitments

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Property, plant and equipment 740 978 740 978 

Intangible assets 32 80 32 80 

Total 772 1,058 772 1,058 

Group Trust

At 31 March 2022 £81,587k was included in provisions of NHS Resolutions in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of 

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (31 March 2021: £42,473k).

Group Trust
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Note 25 Financial instruments

Note 25.1 Financial risk management

Currency Risk

Credit Risk

Because the majority of the Foundation Trust's income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the 

Foundation Trust has low exposure to credit risk.  The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2022 are in receivables from 

customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.  The Trust's procurement process is robust and the 

Trust restricts prepayments to suppliers.  The Foundation Trust is not exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period 

in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  Because of the continuing service provider 

relationship that the Foundation Trust has with clinical commissioning groups and the way those clinical commissioning 

groups are financed, the Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  Also 

financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 

companies, to which the financial standards mainly apply.  The Foundation Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest 

surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held 

to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.

The Foundation Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities 

being in the UK and sterling based.  The Foundation Trust has no overseas operations.  The Foundation Trust has low 

exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

The Foundation Trust's treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters 

defined formally within the Foundation Trust's Standing Financial Instructions and policies agreed by the Board of 

Directors.  Foundation Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust's internal auditors. 
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Note 25.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2022

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at fair 

value 

through 

I&E

Held at 

fair value 

through 

OCI

Total 

book 

value

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at 

fair value 

through 

I&E

Held at 

fair value 

through 

OCI

Total 

book 

value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables with NHS and DHSC bodies 

excluding non financial assets 7,946 - - 7,946 7,946 - - 7,946 

Trade and other receivables with other bodies excluding non 

financial assets 1,767 - - 1,767 1,613 - - 1,613 

Other Investments - - - - 441 - - 441 

Loans With Subsidiaries - - - - 10,227 - - 10,227 

Cash and cash equivalents 60,910 - - 60,910 60,107 - - 60,107 

Total at 31 March 2022 70,623 - - 70,623 80,334 - - 80,334 

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2021

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at fair 

value 

through 

I&E

Held at 

fair value 

through 

OCI

Total 

book 

value

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at 

fair value 

through 

I&E

Held at 

fair value 

through 

OCI

Total 

book 

value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables with NHS and DHSC bodies 

excluding non financial assets 13,267 - - 13,267 13,267 - - 13,267 

Trade and other receivables with other bodies excluding non 

financial assets 1,478 - - 1,478 1,475 - - 1,475 

Other Investments - - - - 441 - - 441 

Loans With Subsidiaries - - - - 12,976 - - 12,976 

Cash and cash equivalents 50,714 - - 50,714 49,051 - - 49,051 

Total at 31 March 2021 65,459 - - 65,459 77,210 - - 77,210 

Note 25.3 Carrying values of financial liabilities

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2022

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at fair 

value 

through 

I&E

Total 

book 

value

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at 

fair value 

through 

I&E

Total 

book 

value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Trade and other payables with NHS and DHSC bodies excluding 

non financial liabilities 4,010 - 4,010 4,059 - 4,059 

Trade and other payables (excluding non financial liabilities) - with 

other bodies 32,881 - 32,881 32,517 - 32,517 

Provisions under contract 4,167 - 4,167 4,167 - 4,167 

Total at 31 March 2022 41,058 - 41,058 40,743 - 40,743 

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at fair 

value 

through 

I&E

Total 

book 

value

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at 

fair value 

through 

I&E

Total 

book 

value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Trade and other payables with NHS and DHSC bodies excluding 

non financial liabilities 1,171 - 1,171 1,171 - 1,171 

Trade and other payables (excluding non financial liabilities) - with 

other bodies 30,319 - 30,319 31,264 - 31,264 

Provisions under contract 5,714 - 5,714 5,714 - 5,714 

Total at 31 March 2021 37,204 - 37,204 38,149 - 38,149 

Note 25.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The Group held no non-current financial assets as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: nil).

The carrying amount of the following financial assets and liabilities is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value:

   Cash and cash equivalents

   Trade and other receivables

   Trade and other payables

Group

Group Trust

Group Trust

Group Trust

Trust
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# Note 25.5 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2022

31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 

In one year or less 40,292 36,668 39,977 37,359 

In more than one year but not more than five years 82 30 82 30 

In more than five years 684 506 684 506 

Total 41,058 37,204 40,743 37,895 

# Note 26 Losses and special payments

Group and trust

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Number £000 Number £000 

Losses

Bad debts and claims abandoned 74 83 103 85 

Stores losses and damage to property 6 2 1 1 

Total losses 80 85 104 86 

Special payments

Ex-gratia payments 1 2,045 - - 

Total special payments 1 2,045 - - 

Total losses and special payments 81 2,130 104 86 

Compensation payments received - - 

All losses are derived from the Trust.

The ex-gratia payment related payments made to eligible employees following settlement of claims (both actual and 

potential) in relation to the Flowers v East of England Ambulance Services.  This agreement was reached nationally 

on behalf of English Ambulance Trusts, between NHS Employers and national Trade Unions, the agreement included 

a period of ‘back-pay’.  Payments were in recognition of overtime and other regular payments that should be accrued 

during period of annual leave, as outlined in Section 13.9 of the NHS Agenda for Change Handbook.

2021/22 2020/21

Note: All losses and special payments are on an accruals basis but exclude provision for future losses.

The following maturity profile of financial liabilities is based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows. This differs to 

the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position which are discounted to present value.

TrustGroup
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# Note 27 Related Parties

Health Education England

Oxford University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust

Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

NHS Oxfordshire CCG

NHS Hampshire, Southampton & Isle of Wight CCG

NHS Buckinghamshire CCG

NHS Bedfordshire, Luton & Milton Keynes CCG

NHS Portsmouth CCG

NHS Frimley CCG

NHS Berkshire West CCG

NHS Brighton & Hove CCG

NHS East Sussex CCG

NHS Surrey Heartlands CCG

NHS West Sussex CCG

Isle of Wight NHS Trust

NHS England

Public Health England

Note 28 Events after the reporting date

During the year none of the Board Members or members of the key management staff or parties related to them has 

undertaken any material transactions with South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust.

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party.  During the year South Central Ambulance 

Service NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with the Department, and with 

other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are listed below:

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust entered into the following transactions during the year with 

its wholly owned subsidiary, South Central Fleet Services Ltd;

Payments to South Central Fleet Services Ltd £10.446m (2020/21: £12.972m).

Receipts from South Central Fleet Services Ltd £0.382m (2020/21: £0.376m).

There were no events after the reporting date.

Amounts owed to South Central Fleet Services Ltd as at 31st March 2022 £0.982m (31st March 2021: £0.727m).

Amounts owed from South Central Fleet Services Ltd as at 31st March 2022 £nil (31st March 2021: £nil).

During the year South Central Ambulance Service loaned South Central Fleet Services Ltd £6.5m with an interest rate 

of 3.5%, during the year repayments of £9.975m were made. At the end of the year South Central Fleet Services 

owed South Central Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust £10.228m in outstanding loans (2020/21: £13.703m)

The SCA Charity had total gross assets of £698k as at 31 March 2022 (2020/21: £493k).  During the 2021/22 year the 

Charity received income of £989k (2020/21: £558k) and incurred expenditure of £884k (2020/21: £586k). The results 

for 31 March 2022 are provisional and unaudited at this stage and are subject to change. During the year South 

Central Ambulance Service paid the charity £50k for 6 months' lease costs for the charity's Community First 

responder vehicles. The charity contributed £10k towards the costs of providing Christmas hampers to the staff of the 

Trust.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of Governors of South Central Ambulance 

Service NHS Foundation Trust  

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on the financial statements 

We have audited the financial statements of South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (the ‘Trust’) and its 

subsidiary (the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 March 2022, which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 

Income, the Statements of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Changes 

in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted in the United Kingdom, and as interpreted and adapted by the 

Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2021 to 2022.  

In our opinion, the financial statements:  

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Trust as at 31 March 2022 and of the 

Group’s and Trust’s expenditure and income for the year then ended; and  

• have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards  

(IFRSs) as adopted in the United Kingdom, as interpreted and adapted by the Department of  

Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2021 to 2022; and  

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006.  

 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), applicable law and 

Practice Note 10 ‘Audit of Financial Statements and Regularity of Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom’. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Accounting Officer’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 

that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a period 

of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Accounting Officer with respect to going concern are described in the 

relevant sections of this report. 

Other information  

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 

the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

 

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there 

is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to 

report that fact.  

 

We have nothing to report in this regard.  
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Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice  

In our opinion:  

• The parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with 

the National Health Service Act 2006; and  

• The other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual Report for the 

financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

Annual Governance Statement 

• Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the Annual Governance 

Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting 

Manual, is misleading, or is inconsistent with information of which we are aware from our audit. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.  

Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer for the financial statements  

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer's Responsibilities, the Accounting Officer is responsible for 

the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal 

control as the Accounting Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

The Accounting Officer is required to comply with the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 

and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the Trust is informed of the intention for dissolution 

without transfer of services or function to another entity. The Accounting Officer is responsible for assessing each year 

whether or not it is appropriate for the Trust to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 

Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.  

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud  

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line 

with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.  

We obtain and update our understanding of the entity, its activities, its control environment, and likely future 

developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable and how the Trust is complying with 

that framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. This includes consideration of the risk of acts 

by the Trust that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.  

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we designed 

procedures which included:  

• Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and claims as 

well as actual, suspected and alleged fraud; 

• Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;  

• Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have a direct material effect on 

the Trust’s financial statements or the operations of the Trust through enquiry and inspection; 

• Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with 

applicable laws and regulations, the National Health Service Act 2006 and other related legislation;  
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• Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, including testing of journal 

entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the rationale of significant transactions outside the 

normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for indicators of potential bias; and 

• Other audit procedures responsive to the risk of fraud, non-compliance with laws and regulation or irregularity as 

appropriate. 

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members 

and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those 

leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulations. This risk increases the 

more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial 

statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Report on other legal and regulatory matters 

Reports in the public interest or to the regulator 

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:  

• we issue a report in the public interest under Schedule 10 (3) of the National Health Service Act 2006; or  

• we refer a matter to the regulator under Schedule 10 (6) of the National Health Service Act 2006, because we 

have reason to believe that the Trust, or a director or officer of the Trust, is about to make, or has made, a 

decision which involves or would involve the incurring of expenditure that was unlawful, or is about to take, or has 

begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss 

or deficiency.  

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.  

Report on the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources 

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been able to satisfy 

ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.  We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer 

The Chief Executive as Accounting Officer is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in the Trust’s use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review 

regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources  

We are required under paragraph 1 of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006 to be satisfied that the Trust 

has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and to report 

where we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that it has done so. We are not required to consider, nor have we 

considered, whether all aspects of the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 

of resources are operating effectively.  

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the 

specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021. This guidance sets out the 

arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of 

Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria: 

• Financial sustainability: how the Trust plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its 

services;  

• Governance: how the Trust ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and  

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Trust uses information about its costs and 

performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. 

We have documented our understanding of the arrangements the Trust has in place for each of these three specified 

reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual 
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Report. In undertaking our work, we have considered whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant 

weaknesses in arrangements. 

Certificate of completion of the audit 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of South Central Ambulance Service NHS 

Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the 

National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

Use of our report  

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance with Schedule 10 of the 

National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust’s Council of 

Governors those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 

extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s Council 

of Governors, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.  

 

 

Chris Brown, Key Audit Partner  

for and on behalf of Azets Audit Services, Local Auditor  

Edinburgh 

 

21 June 2022 
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